
 
 
 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with physical limitations that may tend to restrict access to or participation in 
this meeting should contact the County Administrator’s office (231-779-9453) at least twelve (12) hours prior to the scheduled start of the 
meeting. 

 
 

Wexford County 
 

 
 

Gary Taylor, Chair 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

The Executive Committee of the Wexford County Board of Commissioners will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
September 8, 2020, beginning at 4:00 p.m. in the Historic Courthouse, 437 E. Division, Commissioners’ Room, third 

floor, Cadillac, Michigan. 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. ADDITIONS / DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  

E. APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 11, 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES ........................... 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
The Committee welcomes all public input. 

G. AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Discussion on Current Litigation Matters 
2. Cedar Creek Water System 

a.  Infrastructure Alternatives Monthly Report (Bob Polanic, Project Manager) ....................... 4 
 3. Fair Board MOU – End Loader ....................................................................................... 5 
 
H. CORRESPONDENCE 

1. EGLE – New Drinking Water Requirements.................................................................. 11 
I. ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
K. COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
L. CHAIR COMMENTS 
M. ADJOURN 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 



COUNTY OF WEXFORD 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
August 11, 2020 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Taylor at 4:00 p.m., in the WEX Auditorium, 
1320 N. Mitchell, Cadillac, Michigan, 49601.  

Members Present: Gary Taylor, Chair; Mike Bengelink and Mike Musta 
Members Absent: Julie Theobald 
Also Present: Norma Kijorski, Senior Executive Assistant; Janet Koch, County 

Administrator; Kristi Nottingham, Treasurer; Alaina Nyman, Clerk; Bob 
Polanic, Infrastructure Alternatives Inc.; Joe Porterfield, Equalization 
Director; City/Township Representation, Antioch, Cedar Creek, Cherry 
Grove, City of Cadillac, Clam Lake, Liberty; Members of the Public 

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
None. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
A motion was made by Musta and supported by Bengelink to approve the Agenda, 
as presented. A vote was requested. Motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
A motion was made by Bengelink and supported by Musta to approve the July 14, 
2020, Regular Meeting Minutes.  A vote was requested. Motion passed unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 

AGENDA ITEMS 
G.1. Discussion on Current Litigation Matters
Ms. Janet Koch reported the following:
• The Rafaeli case was not decided in favor of the counties.  Plaintiff’s attorney has filed a

notice in the US Court of Appeals.
• The Maynard & Grainger cases have many questions still unanswered.
• The McKay case is a complaint about the notification process.  MMRMA denied

coverage.  The County is a co-plaintiff.
• Regarding the opioid litigation, the US District Judge rejected a motion to dismiss.  A

trial is scheduled for May of next year.
• Still no information from the State on the discrimination complaint.

G.2. a. Cedar Creek Water System
Infrastructure Alternatives Inc. (IAI) Monthly O&M Report for July 2020-Mr. Bob Polanic
reported the following:
• The leak was repaired at a residence.  A pin hole leak was detected, and the suspected

cause was a lightning strike.  The water heater was also destroyed.
• The loss of water should show a significant reduction next month with the leak being

repaired.

E. 

1



Executive Committee 
August 11, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

G.3. Interlocal Agreement – Property Assessing Reform
Mr. Joe Porterfield, Equalization Director, welcomed all representatives from the City and
Townships.

He explained that Property Assessing Reform, Public Act 660 of 2018, has significant 
changes.  Mr. Porterfield stated that the townships and Wexford County did an amazing job 
on the Audit of Minimum Assessment Requirements or AMAR.  It was stated that Wexford 
County is the gold standard for future audits. 

Mr. Porterfield explained that PA 660 requires the Board of Review to attend training.  PA 
660 also requires the BOC to appoint a Designated Assessor.  A Designated Assessor 
must have an advance or master level certification.  This assessor will take the place of a 
township assessor if that township does not pass an audit.  This assessor will be the 
Designated Assessor for a period of five years.  Mr. Porterfield inquired with the other 
assessors in the county and no one is willing to assume the position of a Designated 
Assessor.  However, Mr. Porterfield is willing to assume this position.  There will be no cost 
to the townships for Mr. Porterfield to assume the position unless a township fails an 
AMAR. 

He explained that an interlocal agreement between the County and city/townships is 
required by PA 660 and must be in place by the end of 2020.  A majority of the townships, 
(10) will be needed to approve the interlocal agreement.  A township resolution will be
needed to support the interlocal agreement.  The State is developing a template.

Mr. Porterfield explained that the revised public act also states that each township must 
have assessing information on the internet.  It was stated that the Equalization Department 
is prepared to display this information for the townships on the County website so that the 
townships do not incur additional costs. 

Mr. Porterfield fielded questions from the audience. 

CORRESPONDENCE 
None. 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
Ms. Janet Koch thanked Mr. Porterfield for the presentation.  She stated that she hopes to 
attend township meetings with Mr. Porterfield. 

She stated that if there is another last-minute change of venue for the Board meetings, all 
BOC members will be notified by a phone call. 

Ms. Koch cited she met the Airport Manager, Steve Bujalski, through email communication. 
He inquired about loans/grants for the airport and she gave him information on USDA 
Community Facilities along with some contract information.  He also stated that he is 
excited for the new opportunity and to be in Cadillac. 

2



Executive Committee 
August 11, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
Comm. Bengelink mentioned that there is no “for sale” sign on the jail property. 

CHAIR COMMENTS 
Chairman Taylor thanked all for attending the meeting. 

ADJOURN  
A motion was made by Bengelink and supported by Musta to adjourn at 4:24 p.m. A 
vote was called.  All in favor.  

_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Gary Taylor, Chair Norma Kijorski, Recording Secretary 

3



Monthly Operations & Maintenance Report
September 8, 2020 

Report for Month:  August, 2020  
Location:  Wexford County 
Facilities: Cedar Creek Water Plant & Distribution System 
Operator in Charge:  Bob Polanic, Project Manager 

Emergency Call-outs/Customer Complaints 

 N/A

Significant Events: 

 N/A

Preventive Maintenance: 

 IAI staff continues to regularly check chlorine residuals throughout the water system.

Facilities Data for the Month 
Production at Well House 497,600 gallons 

Metered Usage (Includes Flushing Hydrants) 470,411 gallons 
Metered Reversal Flow at Well House 22,960 gallons 

Metered Flushing 0 gallons 
Difference (% Loss) 4,229 gallons (0.85%) 

G.2.a.

4



G.3.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

TO: Executive Committee 

FROM: Janet Koch, Administrator 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 8, 2020 
SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – End Loader 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

The County and the Northern District Fair Association, NDFA, are parties to an MOU 
regarding the payments for the end loader used at the Wexford Civic Center which was 
purchased in June of 2018.  The Fair Board agreed to buy a half interest in the loader, at 
$11,000.  See attached agreement. 

In 2019, NDFA requested a change in the date of the payments due to the County from July 
1, 2019 and July 1, 2020 to September 15, 2019 and September 15, 2020.  A MOU was 
signed by both parties and is attached for review. 

Since the disruption by COVID-19, NDFA determined that the fair should be canceled for 
this year.  Since there is no fair, finances have been reduced significantly.  The County and 
the NDFA have always had a good working relationship and a new draft MOU requesting the 
second payment of $5,500 due on September 15, 2021 is attached for review. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
If the draft MOU reflecting the change in the second payment date of September 15, 2021 is 
acceptable, send it to the full board for approval. 

5



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum is made and entered into on the date set forth below, by and between the County of 
Wexford (County) and Northern District Fair Association (NDFA). 

1) The County and NDFA are parties to an Agreement for the Purchase and Sale of
Interest in Front End Loader dated June 20, 2018.

2) NDFA submitted the first installment on September 5, 2019 in the amount of $5,000
leaving a balance of $6,000 due on September 15, 2020.

3) Beginning March of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic altered how businesses
operated and the Governor of Michigan enacted the MI Safe Start Plan
which prohibited public gatherings.

4) The NDFA determined it was in the best interest of the public not to hold
its annual fair.  Without the revenue from the annual fair, NDFA is unable
to fulfill its payment obligation.

5) The County is extending the due date of the September 15, 2020 payment to
September 15, 2021.  This extension of the second and final payment is the
result of the disruption by COVID-19.

6) The parties intend by this Memorandum of Understanding to confirm that the
cooperation of the County in undertaking this request does not waive or release
either NDFA or the County from any of their respective obligations under, or
the right of the other party to future enforcement of breaches of, the Warranty
Deed dated July 26, 1974.

COUNTY OF WEXFORD 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Dated:  __________________  _______________________________ 
Gary Taylor, Chairperson 

Dated:  __________________  _______________________________ 
Alaina M. Nyman, County Clerk 

NORTHERN DISTRICT FAIR 
ASSOCIATION 

Dated:  __________________  By: _______________________________ 
Name, Title 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14


	E. Executive Minutes Draft August 2020
	G.2.a. Cedar Creek OM Report for August '20
	G.3. End Loader Agreement - New MOU
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.3.a. MOU County and NDF for the Purchase and Sale of Interest in Front End Loader #2 Extending Second Payment
	G.3.b. MOU NDF and the County RE Front End Loader
	G.3.c. Purchase Agreement for the Front End Loader
	H.1. EGLE - New Drinking Water Requirements



